
Note:  Public hearings are not held during Town Council Work Sessions.  The public is invited to attend the Work Session and listen to the Council’s discussion.  
However, the Council is not required to take public comments during Work Sessions.  At the discretion of the Council, public comment may be allowed if time permits 
and, if allowed, public comment may be limited.  The Town Council may make a Final Decision on any item listed on the agenda, regardless of whether it is listed as an 

action item.  The public will be excluded from any portion of the Work Session during which an Executive Session is held. 
Report of the Town Manager; Report of Mayor and Council members; Scheduled Meetings and Other Matters are topics listed on the 7:30 pm Town Council Agenda.  

If time permits at the afternoon work session, the Mayor and Council may discuss these items. 
 

 
 

BRECKENRIDGE TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Tuesday, April 10, 2012; 3:00 PM 

Town Hall Auditorium 
 

ESTIMATED TIMES:  The times indicated are intended only as a guide.  They are at the discretion of the Mayor, 
depending on the length of the discussion, and are subject to change. 

  Page  
3:00 - 3:15 p.m. I PLANNING COMMISSION DECISIONS 2 
 

 II LEGISLATIVE REVIEW - NONE  
 

3:15 - 3:45 p.m. III MANAGERS REPORT  
Public Projects Update 14 
Housing/Childcare Update - None  
Committee Reports - None  
Financials 17 
Retreat Discussion - Verbal  

 
3:45 - 5:30 p.m. IV OTHER  

Committee Appointments 31 
Rodeo on Town Property 32 
Ski Area Discussion Update - Verbal  
Agreement with County for Recycle Center/Public Works Yard 36 
Breckenridge Nordic Center Agreement 67 
CMC Memorandum of Understanding 99 
Ski Area Preliminary Agreement 106 
Solar Gardens Update 120 

 
 V PLANNING MATTERS - NONE  
 

5:30 - 7:00 p.m. VI EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Town Council 
 
From: Peter Grosshuesch 
 
Date: April 4, 2012 
 
Re: Town Council Consent Calendar from the Planning Commission Decisions of the April 3, 2012, 

Meeting. 
 
DECISIONS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA OF April 3, 2012: 
 
CLASS C APPLICATIONS: 
1. Stowell Residence (MGT) PC#2012017, 114 North Ridge Street 
Construct a new, single family residence with 4 bedrooms, 5 bathrooms, a studio / one bathroom accessory 
apartment, 8,168 sq. ft. of density and 5,113 sq. ft. of mass for a F.A.R. of 1:1.61. Approved. 
2. Walker Residence (MGT) PC#2012018, 873 Fairways Drive 
Construct a new, single family residence with 3 bedrooms, 2.5 bathrooms, 2,367 sq. ft. of density and 2,987 
sq. ft. of mass for a F.A.R. of 1:15.30. Approved. 
 
CLASS B APPLICATIONS: 
1. Valette Residence (MGT) PC#2012010, 301 South French Street 
Construct a new, single family residence with 4 bedrooms, 3 bathrooms, a 1 bedroom / 1 bathroom employee 
housing unit, 1,936 sq. ft. of density and 1,510 sq. ft. of mass for a F.A.R. of 1:1.42. Approved. 
 
CLASS A APPLICATIONS: 
1. Breckenridge Nordic Center Lodge (MGT) PC#2011050, 954 Ski Hill Rd 
Construct a new Nordic Center Lodge with 9,979 sq. ft. of density, 6,184 sq. ft. of mass and two employee 
housing units for a F.A.R. of 1:7.70, a detached, 668 sq. ft. ski school building, and a 53 space parking lot 
with 3 ADA compliant spaces. Approved. 
2. Wellington Neighborhood 2, Filing 5 (MM) PC#2012019 
A re-subdivision of a portion of Lot 3, Block 6, Wellington Neighborhood Preliminary Plat to create 12 single 
family lots. Approved. 
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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:07 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Kate Christopher Jim Lamb Trip Butler 
Gretchen Dudney Michael Rath Dan Schroder 
Dave Pringle  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Ms. Dudney: On page 6, second sentence: Regarding Vendor Carts, should be: “just in case an owner disappears in the 
middle of the night”. 
With one change, the March 20, 2012 Planning Commission meeting minutes were approved unanimously (7-0). 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Mr. Neubecker: Noted a request for a call-up of the Carter Ridge Residence from the consent calendar. 
Mr. Pringle: I request to table the Carter Ridge Residence from the Consent Calendar in order for it to be 

heard after the Nordic Center or the Valette Residence due to matter of a question regarding 
permit renewal.  

 
Mr. Neubecker: Applicant has proposed a change that would eliminate negative points. We think it makes sense 

to discuss this application first, since Applicant is in the audience now. 
 
With no other changes, the April 3, 2012 Planning Commission meeting agenda was approved unanimously (7-0). 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
1) Carter Ridge Residence (MGT) PC#2012017, 114 North Ridge Street 
2) Walker Residence (MGT) PC#2012018, 873 Fairways Drive 

 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to call up the Carter Ridge Residence, PC#2012017, 114 North Ridge Street. The motion was 
seconded for discussion by Ms. Dudney. The motion was passed unanimously (7-0) and moved to the end of the consent 
calendar.   
 
Carter Ridge Residence, PC#2012017, 114 North Ridge Street Call-Up:  
Mr. Thompson gave a short presentation about the application for review for the Commission and the public in 
attendance. He discussed the proposed materials, with different materials on the two modules of the building. He 
discussed the site layout, driven by the large size of the lot, which is twice the size of most lots in the historic district. 
The following discussion and comments occurred:  
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Pringle: Disclosed that he had a conversation with Mr. Stowell, the Applicant, over the weekend, and wants to 

disclose that he did not discuss anything regarding this application but he wanted everyone to be 
aware that they are social friends. For the technical reason he just wanted to make sure that it was 
mentioned. He would have no financial benefit from this application and stated this as well. The 
Commission did not find this to be a conflict of interest. 

Ms. Dudney: The primary building is barn wood? (Mr. Thompson: Yes, the vertical portion of the building is.) (Mr. 
Neubecker: Regarding Condition # 21, HERS rating, the Applicant will submit revised plans.) 

Mr. Pringle:  Brought up aspects of Policy 9; Absolute Policy, with roof overhand encroachment of 18 inches. (Mr. 
Neubecker: This policy assumes you are already getting the negative points.)  Doesn’t he get 
positive points for screened parking? (Mr. Neubecker: This is really a question of whether or not 
points were assigned properly in the first round.) If we are giving positive points for screening 
parking from the street on other applications, then why wouldn’t this qualify for the points?  If you 
put parking in a garage is it screened from public view? I thought the points weren’t awarded 
consistently between the two applications (referring to another application on the same agenda). (Mr. 
Neubecker: If we assign the points for parking, we still have to make up one point.) (Mr. Thompson: 
If the applicant could get positive two points (+2) from parking he would get a HERS and try to get a 
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rating of ~60-80.) (Ms. Puester: Technically, all he would have to do is get a HERS rating, and he 
would make up that one point he needed.)  

Ms. Dudney:  I wanted to call it up for a different reason. Understand the priority policy for architectural 
compatibility. The policy itself has incoherent inconsistencies. (Mr. Thompson: The previous 
Commissions found Policy 145 non-applicable.) (Mr. Neubecker: The policy discusses both the 
general character of the existing neighborhood, and the desired character of the neighborhoods.) 
Personally I like the design; my question was precedence and we need to remember these priority 
policies can be inconsistent sometimes.  

 
Mr. Rath, Ms. Christopher, Mr. Lamb and Mr. Butler had no questions.  
 
Mr. Albert Stowell, Applicant: We designed the home so it looked like two small houses from the Ridge Street side. We 
will try to get permits from the city for trees on the city property. It is designed so it is a zero energy drain; looking to be 
a long-term residence and it will be a benefit to keep the overhang as designed, which encroaches on the side set back by 
18”.   
 
Ms. Dudney:   What is the benefit of the overhang to the tenant? (Mr. Stowell: Limits snowmelt on the stairs to 

accessory apartment.) Would you want approval with no overhang vs. condition of approval with 
screening of parking space and you would have to work with the Town to get landscaping approved? 
Which would be your preference? (Mr. Stowell: I would rather keep the overhang.) 

Mr. Schroder:  So in order to screen the external parking, you would have to work with the Town? (Mr. Stowell: 
Yes.) (Mr. Neubecker: Discussed his concern for creating precedent for this Commission to deal with 
this issue, other people may view this as a front-yard.  Do we want to award those other projects with 
positive points for parking in front yards?) 

Mr. Pringle: We need to treat this as a unique situation. It isn’t ideal but it is the reality. 
 
Mr. Schroder opened the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment and the hearing was closed. 
 
Ms. Christopher:  I agree with Mr. Pringle; I feel that it isn’t an ideal situation. It doesn’t have an alley, if the Applicant 

can screen the parking and do whatever he needs to do with the points, I am for that.  
Mr. Lamb: Where I am coming from with regards to positive points for parking is, since there is a parking spot, 

unless it is shielded, I would have a problem awarding the positive points.  
Mr. Pringle: Is the Town interested in an enclosed bus shelter in this location for positive points? (Mr. Thompson: 

There are generally not bus shelters in the historic district. Mr. Neubecker: We would need to consult 
with Transit and Public Works Department on transit shelters.)  

Mr. Schroder:  We are looking at a three point differential. Is anyone opposed to moving this forward? (Ms. Dudney: 
Moving it forward with what conditions?) (Mr. Neubecker: If there are any other major elements we 
need to mention them now and then we can discuss the points.)  

Mr. Rath:  On exterior materials, I would like to see samples of the actual materials. There is a huge variance of 
the actual materials. Seeing those colors would be very important. This is a point analysis question: if 
the Applicant is building an energy efficient house, isn’t there some room for giving points for that? 
HERS score of 80 is an easy number to achieve. The average house is 100. (Mr. Neubecker: Maybe 
getting an 80 would be relatively easy; I believe they are discussing a “net zero” only on electricity.) 
(Mr. Thompson: Now we are looking at the HERS rating.) (Mr. Neubecker: We don’t know where it 
would end up on the HERS because we haven’t tested it yet.) 

Mr. Schroder: (To the Commission):  Does this application deserve positive points for screening the parking from 
public view? 

Ms. Dudney: If the applicant leaves the overhang as is, but obtains a HERS rating and the parking is screened to 
staff satisfaction, I think it can be approved.   

 
Ms. Dudney made a motion to approve the point analysis for Carter Ridge Residence, PC #2012017, 114 North Ridge 
Street, with the modification to provide positive two points (+2) for Policy 18/R for screening the parking to the 
satisfaction of the Town staff, and one positive point (+1) for energy conservation by obtaining a HERS rating.  Ms. 
Christopher seconded and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
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Ms. Dudney made a motion to change the conditions of approval for the Carter Ridge Residence, PC#2012017, 114 
North Ridge Street, to 

• Add a condition that the outside parking space must be screened to the approval of the Town Staff; and, 
• Modify Condition 21 to say the Applicant must conduct a HERS rating, prior to issuance of a building permit. 

Ms. Christopher seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0).  
 
Ms. Dudney made a final motion to approve the Carter Residence, PC#2012017, 114 N. Ridge Street, to extend the 
development permit for three years. Ms. Christopher seconded and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0).  
 
WORKSESSIONS: 
1) Renewable Mechanical Mass Bonus (Policy 4) (JP) 
Ms. Puester presented. The purpose of this worksession is to discuss possible changes to Policy 4 (Relative) Mass, to 
allow for additional mechanical room space for renewable energy systems such as solar hot water.   
 
The Planning Commission discussed this policy previously at meetings on May 18, August 30 and December 6, of 2011. 
This issue addresses two different goals of the Town 1) encouraging energy efficiency and renewable sources of energy, 
and 2) maintaining community character (including building massing limitations). Staff would like to find a way to 
encourage the use of renewable energy without compromising character.   
 
Almost all older multi-family buildings in Town have been built to or are over the allowed mass. In most cases, 
mechanical room additions for renewable energy systems could be accommodated within the existing building footprints 
but would consume additional mass. Many buildings in town have existing boilers with mechanical rooms which could 
accommodate needed improvements to convert to a renewable energy source by reconfiguring the existing mechanical 
room with no additional mass required (ex. Longbranch solar thermal system, 2011).   
 
Since the December 6th Planning Commission meeting, Staff has discussed this policy with experts in the field including 
local mechanical engineers, designers, solar thermal installers and plumbers. Based on these consultations, Staff has 
proposed to increase the maximum square footage permitted from 300 to 350 square feet to address instances when a 
large building (25,000+ square foot multifamily building) is on an all electric heat source which would require the 
addition of boilers, solar hot water holding tank and piping. Staff believes that after consulting with the experts, this 
should address the worst case scenario, which is a large multi-family building on electric heat. Most buildings, including 
commercial (restaurant, retail and office) uses would require a much smaller renewable system. Any additional mass 
approved under this policy would have a covenant recorded against the property which states that the mass is permitted 
only for the mechanical room with a renewable energy source in perpetuity and may not be converted into any other use 
in the future. 
 
Staff has proposed a revised policy which attempts to address the Commission’s concerns voiced at the December 6th 
meeting. Staff welcomed Commissioner comments and input on the draft policy to get direction on the policy in order to 
move forward with ordinance language to the Town Council. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments:  
Mr. Pringle: What would you think if you took paragraphs A1 and A2 and you flip-flopped them so that they see 

A2 first? (Ms. Puester: Fine with that.) 
Mr. Schroder: Good as presented and thank you for the Longbranch magazine article.  
Mr. Rath:  Yes, seems like this will help projects incorporate renewable systems into their remodels. 
 
The remaining Commissioners agreed with Mr. Schroder’s comments and no further questions or comments were made.  
 
FINAL HEARINGS:  
Mr. Schroder called a short break to allow Mr. Thompson to get a material board for the Commissioners to see regarding 
the Valette Residence.   
 
Mr. Butler excused himself from the hearing due to a possible financial conflict with the Application as he will be 
bidding on the cabinets for the house.  
 
1) Valette Residence (MGT) PC#2012010, 301 South French Street 
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Mr. Thompson presented a proposal to remove the existing non-historic structure and replace it with a 2,012 square-foot, 
two-story residence with four bedrooms, three bathrooms, one gas fireplace, two upper-level decks, and a lower level, one 
bedroom, one bathroom, 434 square-foot employee housing unit. Exterior materials include fiberglass composite shingle roof, 
scalloped cedar shingles at the gable ends, 4 ½ inch bevel hardboard siding (Priority Policy 125 recommends lap siding 
dimensions of approximately 4 inches), 3 ½ inch wide hardboard corner and window trim, wood deck railings, decorative 
cornice brackets and corbels, a real stone wainscoting around the base of the house varying in height from 9 to 18 inches, and 
a real stone and wood timber retaining wall for the driveway. 
 
The applicant originally received approval in March 2005 to build the proposed home, and the permit was extended by a 
Class C permit in 2008. For financing reasons, the applicant was unable to start construction at that time. The approved 
Development Permit expired on August 27, 2009. The proposed design is almost identical to the plans approved in 2005 and 
2008. There were no major issues at the preliminary hearing on March 6, 2012.  There have been no plan changes from the 
March 6th, 2012, meeting. 
 
Staff recommended the following point analysis: 
 

• Negative ten points (-10) under Policy 3/R – Density/Intensity, as this application is 4% over the density 
recommendation of the Land Use District Guidelines.   

• Positive ten (+10) points under Policy 24/R – Social Community, for the basement employee housing unit.   
• Negative two (-2) points under Policy 33/R – Energy Conservation, for the 653 square feet of heated driveway. 
• Positive two (+2) points under Policy 18/R - Parking, for the placement and screening of all off street parking 

areas from public view.   
 

The application has a passing point analysis total of zero. Staff found that all Absolute Policies and Historic Guidelines 
have been met.  
 
Staff found that the Valette Residence, Accessory Unit, and Removal of Existing Structure (PC#2012010), is compatible with 
the surrounding neighborhood and does a good job to hide its parking at the rear of the lot.  Staff recommended that this 
project be approved with the presented Findings and Conditions. 
 
Mr. Schroder opened the hearing to public comment. 
 
Mr. John Raymond, builder for the project, wanted the Commission to know that the total square footage is 2,012.  
 
There was no more public comment and the hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments:  
Ms. Dudney: These colors have all been accepted? (Mr. Thompson: Yes, they all meet the correct chroma.) 
Mr. Pringle:  Last time we discussed removing one of the fireplace flues. (Mr. Raymond: We are putting PVC’s in 

and we intend to do that. There is a gas burning fireplace and we will use a direct vent out the side.) 
That cleans up everything for me, instead of having a (smoke) stack out of the roof. Thank you for 
taking into consideration our previous concerns.  

Ms. Dudney:  No comment. 
Mr. Schroder:  Support approval and no comment on application. 
Ms. Christopher:   Yes. 
Mr. Rath:  Yes.  
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the point analysis for the Valette Residence, PC#2012010, 301 South French 
Street. Ms. Christopher seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).  
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the Valette Residence, PC#2012010, 301 South French Street, with the presented 
Findings and Conditions. Ms. Christopher seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0). 
 
2) Breckenridge Nordic Center Lodge (MGT) PC#2011050, 954 Ski Hill Road 
Mr. Thompson presented a proposal to construct a new, 9,979 square foot Nordic Center to replace the existing Nordic 
Center building, which will be removed. The plan also includes a 53 space parking lot, including three ADA compliant 
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parking spaces. The building has been designed with a covered drop off area at the entrance to the lodge for guests. 
There is a large 20’ x 37’ west facing deck. The inside of the building has been designed to include: a lounge, coffee and 
snack bar, retail area, equipment rental area, an EPA Phase II wood burning device, restrooms, snow cat enclosed 
parking, two employee housing units, and an unfinished storage area in the lower level. A detached 668 square foot ski 
school building is proposed to the west of the proposed Nordic Lodge. 
 
The current Nordic Center building will be removed to make way for the Cucumber Creek Estates Subdivision, which 
will take its access through the current parking lot and building location. The applicant had a preliminary hearing on 
September 20, 2011. At that hearing buffering the parking lot from the neighbors was the only issue. The applicant has 
addressed this issue by increasing the buffering through additional landscaping. Additional parking has been added next 
to the building for employees. There will also be a chandelier under the porte-cochere.  
 
Staff suggested negative one (-1) point under Policy 6/R Building Height for a long unbroken ridgeline of over 50’, 
positive four (+4) points under Policy 22/R for an above average landscaping plan, positive three (+3) points under 
Policy 20/R for a 100% public recreation facility, and positive five (+5) points under Policy 24/R for the inclusion of 
employee housing exceeding 7% of the proposed density, for a total passing point analysis of positive eleven (+11) 
points. All Absolute and Relative policies of the Development Code have been met.   
 
The Planning Department recommended the Planning Commission approve the Breckenridge Nordic Center Lodge, 
(PC#2011050), located at 954 Ski Hill Road, Tracts C & D, Christie Heights, with the presented Findings and 
Conditions. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments:  
Mr. Schroder:  Did we lose any trees? (Mr. Thompson: All of the x marks on the plans will be the trees that we will 

removed.  Potentially looking to transplant some trees with an expected 50% survival rate.)  
Ms. Dudney: Regarding the Town’s off-street parking regulation; there is no specific number set? (Mr. Thompson: 

The amount of off-street parking for commercial recreation indoor and outdoor is set by special 
review of the Director and Planning Commission.)   

 
Mr. Tom Peterson, Architect: There is a lot of below-grade square footage that won’t be bulking up the building. We 
added a couple strips of landscaping islands to reduce the large amount of asphalt for parking. The gazebo has been 
removed; the ski school building is a more appropriate style of architecture and needs for the Nordic Center.   
 
Mr. Gene Dayton and Mr. Matt Dayton, Applicants: Presented a 3D-model of the lodge. Added an extra storage room in 
the basement. All of the logs come from the gondola cut line and have been turned, lathed and sealed.  
 
Ms. Theresa Dayton, Applicant: We have a 30 year contract with the Town to operate; the Town will inherit the building 
after 30 years. We also will have a timeframe to remove the other facility. We feel our adjustment was in the best interest 
of the Town, us and our guests.  
 
Mr. Gene Dayton: In hindsight, this is the best location we could have come up with. The building will have a great view 
to the west and I think it will serve our customers better as Nordic skiers spend more time in the base lodge than alpine 
skiing.    
 
Mr. Schroder opened the hearing to public comment. 
 
Mr. Dave Garrett, adjacent property owner: Here to support the project. Ask if the Dayton’s would reconsider the 
location of the dumpster enclosure. If a dumpster truck were to come into this area, it could be hard to maneuver. Maybe 
it could be relocated to the other side of the property allowing trucks to turn around easily, instead of driving all the way 
around parking lot. They are very considerate neighbors and I hope this passes.  
 
Mr. John Quigley, Shock Hill Homeowners Association: Gene Dayton attended their last association meeting, they are 
25-years away from receiving a full easement along the existing snowshoe trail to allow for access from the gondola to 
walk over to the new Nordic Center; talked to them about signs near the portal by signing in, which have been installed; 
we consider the Dayton’s the First Citizens of Breckenridge.  
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Mr. Tim Casey, General Partner for Christy Heights Partnership: All of the parking and 1/3 of the building is on our 
property. We intend to donate it to the Town; that is our contribution towards this effort and the location is much better 
than originally intended. It is a partnership among us, the Town and the Applicants, and we support the project and 
would like to see it move forward.  
 
There was no more public comment and the hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Questions/Comments: 
Ms. Christopher:  The little tab of paved area above for the dumpster to turn around? (Mr. Thompson: It is a hammer 

head turn around for the employee parking.  It will be used as a backing up spot.)  On page 73/85; the 
lower foundation, is it brick or exposed cement? It looks solid white on our plans. (Mr. Peterson: It 
will be covered in stone.)  

Mr. Pringle: Is it possible to look into another location for the dumpster? (Ms. Dayton: Currently we do a lot of 
recycling; we only have once-a-week pick up and we hope to continue that.)  

Mr. Schroder: Like what I see and support Staff recommendation to approve the Breckenridge Nordic Center.  
Mr. Lamb: Great looking building and huge asset to the Town of Breckenridge.  Great to see the neighbors are in 

support of this project.   
Mr. Pringle:  It has taken a while to get to this point but here we are today approving it. It looks great and I couldn’t 

be prouder of this and of you guys.  
Ms. Dudney:  Can’t wait for you to get started and to see it finished.  
Mr. Rath: Wonderful addition to the Town and can’t wait to see it completed.  
Ms. Christopher: Good luck! 
Mr. Butler: Strongly supported.  
  
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the point analysis of positive eleven (+11) for the Breckenridge Nordic Center 
Lodge, PC#2011050, 954 Ski Hill Road. Mr. Lamb seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the Breckenridge Nordic Center Lodge, PC#2011050, 954 Ski Hill Road, with the 
presented Findings and Conditions. Mr. Lamb seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
COMBINED HEARINGS: 
1) Wellington Neighborhood 2, Filing 5 (MM) PC#2012019 
Mr. Mosher presented a proposal to re-subdivide a portion of Lot 3, Block 6, of the Wellington Neighborhood (this will 
be the fifth filing for Phase II) in connection with the recently approved Wellington Neighborhood Phase II Master Plan. 
This re-subdivision will create 12 single family lots. 
 
The proposed lot layout, green design and landscaping follows the patterns we have seen in the previously approved 
subdivisions of the Wellington Neighborhood. We welcome any comments from the Commission regarding the 
information presented in this report. Since we had no concerns with this proposal, Staff has advertised this review as a 
combined Preliminary and Final hearing. Staff pointed out an area next to French Gulch Road with a non-buildable area 
on two of the lots to ensure good sight visibility to French Gulch Road.  
 
Staff recommended the Commission approve the Block 9, Wellington Neighborhood 2, Filing 5, a re-subdivision of a 
portion of Lot 3, Block 6, Wellington Neighborhood Preliminary Plat, PC#2012019, with the presented Findings and 
Conditions. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments:  
Mr. Lamb: This design and layout is consistent with the rest of the Wellington area? (Mr. Mosher: Yes, follows 

Master Plan.)  
Ms. Dudney: Brought up Lot 21, which is very narrow. What house is being placed here? (Mr. Mosher: Homes are 

not part of this application, but they are planning on placing a model called the Aspen there. The 
model is narrow, and replaces one half of the former Double House (duplex).) 

Mr. Pringle: Didn’t catch in the initial phase of the developments leading to one organized road in and out of the 
subdivision. (Mr. Mosher: The alleys disperse the traffic impact, and work better than concentrating 
the traffic on one road.)  
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Mr. Schroder:  Is there any idea on timing? (Mr. Mosher: The applicant is ready to bring in homes for review right 
now.)  

Mr. Neubecker:  I don’t think a lot of folks on this Commission have reviewed a subdivision before. We use the 
Subdivision Code, which does not follow a point analysis. (Mr. Schroder: We looked at The Shores.) 
(Ms. Dudney: The Hogan one on Hwy. 9 at the old BBC.) (Mr. Mosher: This was essentially our first 
affordable housing project and is subject to a Master Plan which has provisions that supersede the 
Development Code.)  

Mr. Schroder:  How many homes is that going to be? (Mr. Mosher: There are 12 more lots; they are still selling, but 
not as rapidly as in the past.)  

 
Mr. Schroder the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment, and the hearing was closed.  
 
Commissioner Questions/Comments (Continued): 
Mr. Butler:  No reservations at all. 
Ms. Christopher:  I agree with Mr. Butler. 
Ms. Dudney:  Fine. 
Mr. Pringle:  No questions or comments 
  
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the Wellington Neighborhood 2, Filing 5 (PC#2012019) with the presented 
Findings and Conditions. Ms. Christopher seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
OTHER MATTERS: 
1) Town Council Joint Meeting (May 8, 2012) Memo (CN) 
Mr. Neubecker presented a reminder memo to the Commission concerning the Joint Meeting with the Town Council, 
scheduled for May 8, 2012, from 6-7:30pm in Town Hall Council Chambers. Proposed topics for discussion include: 
 

• Historic Preservation Incentives for Commercial Property 
• McCain Property and F-Lot Update  
• Solar Panels in Historic District/ Solar Gardens 
• Re-development for Commercial / Lodging Sites. Need for more flexible standards? 
• Transition Standards & Inclusion of School and Carter Park  
• Planning Commission Field Trip 
• Vendor Carts 

 
To be realistic based on the short timeframe for the meeting, Staff recommended narrowing this list down to three 
priority issues. If time allows, other issues can also be discussed. 
  
Some other issues that were mentioned at your last meeting, or new topics staff would like to discuss in the future, are 
listed below. Staff recommended discussing these issues during a work session to bring the Commission up to speed 
before discussing these with Town Council: 

 
• Energy Efficiency/Review point system, as well as HERS Index for remodels 
• Claimjumper Parcel for Employee Housing  
• Old CMC / Harris Street Building 
• New Recycle Center on Mc Cain Property 

 
Commissioner Questions / Comments:  
Mr. Schroder: Would like to avoid the four topics at the bottom and focus on the seven above. Would like to suggest 

that we don’t talk about Vendor Carts. (Ms. Christopher: Discussing a topic is different from briefing 
a topic.)  

Mr. Pringle: Renovations of duplexes: we have to have a precedent or talk about what we are going to do when 
Owner A wants to upgrade and remodel but Owner B (other half of duplex) and the other doesn’t. 
(Mr. Neubecker: Is this a big enough issue to discuss with the Council?) What happens when some of 
these places come in for changes? (Ms. Christopher: I think it needs to be on the table, but possibly 
behind the scenes.)  
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Mr. Schroder:  Not in support of talking about our field trip with Town Council.  
Mr. Lamb:  Three new Council members; almost want to put the question back on them, what are their issues?. 

(Mr. Pringle: We need to find out the new dynamics.) What is this Council looking like and what 
direction are they going to take us? (Mr. Neubecker: These folks have been attending meetings; I 
wouldn’t anticipate a major direction change from the past Council.)  

Ms. Dudney:  Solar panels and Mc Cain and F Lot. I think we need to look at what is going to come up in the next 
year; possibly the inclusion of School/Carter Park. I think these are the most likely.  

Mr. Lamb: Agree with Ms. Dudney. (Solar Panels and School/Carter Park with McCain / F-Lot.) 
Mr. Schroder:  Want to run with Ms. Dudney’s lead for conversation purposes. (Mr. Butler and Ms. Christopher 

agreed with Ms. Dudney’s top 3.) 
Mr. Rath: I think it might be important to bring up how we will incentivize some of these multifamily properties 

to upgrade (remodel incentives). The solar panel issue is important and these solar gardens could be 
an issue (#1). Would be interested in hearing more about the F-Lot and what they are planning for 
that area. I heard they are doing green space with parking underneath. Also, I have heard that there 
might be a hotel put in Town. 

Ms. Christopher:  Town Council sets pace, so to a certain extent what do they want to talk about? I don’t really have a 
preference but I would like to know what is important to them.  

Ms. Dudney:  I think Mr. Rath’s point for incentives to remodel is an excellent idea. What could we do to 
incentivize improved exteriors? (Mr. Schroder: I think his idea is on point but I’m not sure our 
economy supports this right now. Maybe we can use this as #4.)  

Mr. Pringle:  Ask the Town Council if there is anything they want to “undo”.  
Mr. Neubecker:  What about ways to encourage upgrades to existing lodging?  
  
2) Top 10 List (CN) 
Mr. Neubecker presented. Planning Department Staff keeps track of the most important long range planning and code updates 
through a list we call the Top 10 List. This list is developed in consultation with Planning Commission and Town Council to 
determine where staff resources should be focused, in addition to our regular workload of development review applications 
and inquiries from the public.   
 
The most recent Top 10 List included the following items: 

• Accessory Dwelling Units and Incentives 
• Landscaping Policy and Defensible Space (Done) 
• Land Use District 31 Update (Done) 
• Energy Conservation Policy (Done) 
• Solar Panels Update (Done) 
• Affordable Housing policy 
• Footprint Lots (Done) 
• Free Commercial Basement Density for Historic Landmarking (Done) 
• Fiber Cement Siding (Done) 
• Adopt Transition Standards (Done) 

 
Staff is currently (or will soon be) working on the following other priority items: 

1. Mechanical Rooms for Renewable Energy 
2. Sign Code Update 
3. Service Commercial Zoning 
4. Food Trucks Ordinance 
5. Air Quality Policy  
6. Water PIFs for Snack Bar/Deli 

 
In preparation for the joint meeting with Town Council, staff suggested developing a list of the next Top 10 items for 
staff to focus on. These could include long range planning or code amendments. This list will be shared with the Town 
Council during the joint meeting on May 8th, and we will see what direction the Council provides for the Top 10 List. 
Staff intends to pursue work on the nest Top 10 List as soon as time and resources allow.  The order that they are 
forwarded to Planning Commission and Town Council will partly depend on the complexity of the project. 
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Following are some suggested items to consider, but Staff welcomed input from the Commission on your ideas for the 
Top 10 List: 

• Major Remodels of Multifamily Housing: Provide some type of incentives, through the point system, for exterior 
remodels of older buildings.  

• Condo Hotels Definition: Should a front desk still be required, even though many owners use management companies 
outside the building? Should a shuttle system be a required feature? 

• Redevelopment Standards: Should we create standards and processes for redevelopment, or continue with the 
Development Agreement process? Should nearby redevelopment sites be allowed to “annex” into the Parking Service 
Area? 

• Wildlife Policy: Develop a policy that protects and enhances wildlife corridors, sensitive habitat and keystone species.  
• Impervious Surfaces: Provide incentives to reduce hard surfaces and improve water quality through on site detention, 

rain gardens, and permeable paving. 
• Open Space Dedication upon Subdivision: Should lots within the Conservation District be exempt from the 

requirement to provide public open space? Would changes to this policy improve the urban form by creating the small 
lots that belong on the District?  

 
Commissioner Questions / Comments:  
Mr. Pringle: Brought up the problem/lack of enforcement of employee housing. People get points for have an 

employee housing unit in their project, but it might sit empty. I don’t want us to get handcuffed with 
other potential applicants because of Deed Restrictions.  

Ms. Dudney: Major remodels of multifamily housing, condo hotels, redevelopment standards. 
Mr. Schroder: I would agree with Ms. Dudney’s top 3. 
Mr. Rath:  Landscaping/The gateway to Breckenridge; now the first thing you see when you drive into 

Breckenridge is our construction storage area. 
Ms. Christopher: Rain gardens, impervious spacing.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
   
 Dan Schroder, Chair 
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Memorandum 
 

TO:   TOWN COUNCIL 
 
FROM: Dale Stein, Assistant Town Engineer  
 
DATE:  April 4, 2012 
 
RE:        Public Projects Update 
  

This memo is to update Council on the construction projects that will be occurring in 2012 and 
supply a brief background on each project for new Council members. Our website will be 
updated weekly with construction schedule and detour information. Interested residents are 
encouraged to subscribe to “Street Construction and Maintenance” updates from the Town’s 
website to be automatically notified by email when updates are posted.  Additionally businesses 
near the construction activities will be individually notified. 

Main Street Revitalization 

The Main Street revitalization process began in 2004 as a suggestion by Town Council. Initially 
Town hired a design consultant, Design Workshop, to guide the development of the vision for 
the Main Street “revitalization”.  Design meetings and open houses were held to include 
community stakeholders in the visioning process. In 2007, Council adopted the current Main 
Street Master Plan.  Key concepts of the master plan include: improving pedestrian safety, 
calming vehicular traffic, improving landscape/amenity zones, and implementing improved way 
finding and signage.   

Due to the limited construction season available on Main Street, small projects have been 
constructed each year as part of the CIP.  Underground storm water projects were completed in 
2006, 2007, & 2008 from Ski Hill Rd. north to French St.  In 2009, pedestrian enhancements 
(bulb-outs & new crosswalks) were constructed at Lincoln/Ski Hill intersection and at the 
Washington Ave intersection in 2010.  In the fall of 2011, the streetscape improvements 
(landscaping and flagstone paving) between Ski Hill Rd. and Washington Ave were started in 
the fall, and will be completed in April/May of this year. 

A very aggressive project schedule is planned on N. Main St. for 2012. Pedestrian 
enhancements will be implemented at the Wellington, Watson, and French St intersections and 
the streetscape will be completed from Ski Hill Rd. north to Watson Ave. Construction is 
scheduled to begin the week of April 16th and run through the end of June. 

We invite any interested Council members to schedule an appointment with the Engineering 
staff to review the plans and concepts in more detail. 
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Asphalt Overlays and Concrete Replacement 

The Council has always been dedicated to maintaining Town’s infrastructure in a good 
condition. Asphalt overlays provide an effective way to maintain roads and the Rec Path.  Staff 
has determined that our roads typically need a new asphalt overlay approximately every 20 
years, and have developed a long term budget that considers this schedule and materials 
escalation costs. The overlay and concrete budget for 2012 is $500,000.  Major locations for the 
2012 project include overlay on the Rec Path from Valley Brook north to the Town limits (near 
Tiger Rd.), Boreas Pass Rd, and Broken Lance Rd. A two-week closure of the Rec Path will be 
required to complete the work.  Work will begin when asphalt mix becomes locally available in 
the spring, anticipated to be May 7th.  The Rec Path will reopen on weekends during the work 
period. 

Concrete replacement is expected to begin after April 16th.  Curb and gutter, sidewalk, and 
valley pan replacement will occur at approximately 25 locations throughout the Town.  Concrete 
replacement requiring road closures will occur at the intersection of Valley Brook St./Airport 
Road, and French Street /Park Ave. This work at the Valley Brook intersection will be scheduled 
after the school year ends on June 1st.  

Gold Pan Alley 

The alley has deteriorated over the past few years with the steady level of vehicular, bus, bike 
and pedestrian traffic.  Staff is currently designing drainage improvements, resurfacing 
improvements and a fire hydrant relocation for the Gold Pan Alley from Ski Hill to Watson.  
Reconstruction of the alley is anticipated for fall of 2012.  

Recreation Center Softball Fence 

The Recreation Center was constructed in 1990 and is now in need of upgrades, major 
maintenance, and repairs.  The Town commissioned a study in 2006 that identified various 
improvements, upgrades and major maintenance items.  As a result, the pool mechanical room 
has been upgraded, the roof over the pool was replaced and improved, and the locker rooms 
have been remodeled.   

This year, the fence and netting system that protect the Rec Center from softballs is scheduled 
for an upgrade and replacement. Staff is currently soliciting firms for a design-build contract to 
be completed this summer. There will no interruption to the softball or Rec Center schedule 
during the installation of the new fence. 

Arts District Projects 

The Council has identified “accelerating the Arts District” as a priority.  The work 
scheduled for the Arts District in 2012 is not based on an accelerated schedule.  The Council 
will see the Arts District plan as a whole in the near future which may impact the work shown 
below. 

Burro Barn Panelization:  The Burro barn is a collapsed, dilapidated historic shed 
located in the Arts District. This project will inventory, stabilize, and protect the historic fabric for 
future use. Staff is currently soliciting architectural services and construction is planned for mid-
summer. 
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Robert Whyte House: A structural and exterior renovation of the Robert Whyte House 
(next to the Breckenridge Theater on Ridge St.) was planned for 2012. Due to a delay in the 
grant for the Historic Structure Assessment, a precursor to the renovation work, the project is 
delayed until 2013.   

Barney Ford Parking Lot: Staff is working on the design of a paved parking area at the 
southeast corner of the Arts District that incorporates an outdoor pit firing and kiln location, and 
improved space for outdoor events and festivals.   

North Main Street Alley (alley between Gold Creek and Andorra condos) 

Staff is considering options to improve traffic movements and safety at the intersection of the 
alley at French St., and also traffic flow in the alley between Wellington Rd. and French St.  
Changes to the alley, if needed, will be completed in the fall.   

Public Works Administration Building 

A new Public Works Administration building is planned at the Public Works campus at 1095 
Airport Road. Construction is anticipated to begin this summer. Further history and detail on this 
project will be provided separately for the April 24th Council work session.   
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FINANCIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: TIM GAGEN, TOWN MANAGER 

FROM: CLERK AND FINANCE DIVISION 

SUBJECT: FEBRUARY NET TAXABLE SALES & RETT REPORTING 

DATE: 4/3/2012 

  

This memo explains significant items of note in relation to sales that occurred within the Town of Breckenridge in the 
month of February.  Real Estate Transfer Tax, including an analysis of the monthly “churn” and sales by property 
type, is also included.   

New Items of Note: 

Net Taxable Sales 

 Overall, Net Taxable sales for February fared well.  We were up 9.2% over 2011.  We also rose above 2006 
#s overall.   

 Restaurants continue to track as the best year ever. Returns are beginning to show an increase over prior year 
on an individual restaurant level.  In response to the observation that this may be due more to the # of open 
restaurants included in the sector more than the success of individual restaurants, I can offer the following 
statistics: 

Restaurant Sector     Increase over PY Decrease over PY New restaurants      Closed restaurants 
        (over PY      (over PY) 
Jan         28 restaurants 35 restaurants  10        5  
Feb         43 restaurants 20 restaurants  12        6 

 Retail sales are showing improvement.  After collecting on unfiled returns for Jan, both months are now 
tracking ahead of 2006#s. 

 While supplies may have tracked ahead of prior year, this wasn’t saying much & we continue to track behind 
2005. 

 Utilities was down 8.4% & behind 2006.  However, it was a warm January and this decrease over prior year is 
consistent with what I saw on my personal bill that was due in February. 

Real Estate Transfer Tax 

 Total March collections fell behind prior year by 54.1%.  However, we are ahead of YTB budget by 1.1% 

 We also fell behind PY churn for the month by 54% (or $98,597). 

 The month did fall short of budget by 14%.  

 YTD sales of townhomes and single family homes are up vs. prior year.   

 YTD Timeshares & single family homes comprised the majority of the sales for the month.   

Continuing Items of Note: 

 Net Taxable Sales are reported in the first Council meeting following the due date of the tax remittance to the 
Town of Breckenridge.  Taxes collected from the customer by the vendor are remitted to the Town on the 
20th of the following month. 
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2 

 Quarterly taxes are reported in the last month of the period.  For example, taxes collected in the first quarter 
of the year (January – March), are include on the report for the period of March. 

 Net Taxable Sales are continually updated as late tax returns are submitted to the Town of Breckenridge.  
Therefore, you may notice slight changes in prior months, in addition to the reporting for the current month. 

 2012 Real Estate Transfer Tax budget is based upon the monthly distribution for 2007.  The reasoning is that 
we should compare to a year with a “normal distribution.”  
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE SALES ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR

* excluding Undefined and Utilities categories

YTD
Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Monthly % Change
2005 2005 2006 2006 2007 2007 2008 2008 2009 2009 2010 2010 2011 2011 2012 2012 11-12 11-12

January 30,549 30,549 34,589 34,589 40,283 40,283 41,665 41,665 34,783 34,783 35,105 35,105 35,805 35,805 37,497 37,497 4.7% 4.7%

February 33,171 63,720 36,236 70,825 40,034 80,317 43,052 84,717 35,453 70,236 34,791 69,896 36,128 71,933 39,437 76,934 9.2% 7.0%

March 42,370 106,090 46,603 117,428 52,390 132,707 54,237 138,954 40,810 111,046 44,485 114,381 47,101 119,034 0 76,934 n/a n/a

April 14,635 120,725 19,963 137,391 20,758 153,465 18,483 157,437 17,171 128,217 16,346 130,727 16,371 135,405 0 76,934 n/a n/a

May 7,355 128,080 8,661 146,052 9,629 163,094 9,251 166,688 7,475 135,692 8,999 139,726 6,971 142,376 0 76,934 n/a n/a

June 14,043 142,123 15,209 161,261 18,166 181,260 16,988 183,676 14,286 149,978 13,557 153,283 14,235 156,611 0 76,934 n/a n/a

July 20,366 162,489 22,498 183,759 24,168 205,428 23,160 206,836 20,788 170,766 21,346 174,629 24,134 180,745 0 76,934 n/a n/a

August 17,625 180,114 20,071 203,830 22,125 227,553 21,845 228,681 18,656 189,422 18,603 193,232 21,878 202,623 0 76,934 n/a n/a

September 15,020 195,134 17,912 221,742 18,560 246,113 18,481 247,162 19,806 209,228 14,320 207,552 16,969 219,592 0 76,934 n/a n/a

October 10,170 205,304 11,544 233,286 12,687 258,800 12,120 259,282 10,410 219,638 10,226 217,778 10,740 230,332 0 76,934 n/a n/a

November 12,647 217,951 15,877 249,163 15,943 274,743 13,483 272,765 12,809 232,447 12,985 230,763 14,549 244,881 0 76,934 n/a n/a

December 39,687 257,638 43,431 292,594 47,258 322,001 42,076 314,841 39,859 272,306 42,343 273,106 46,651 291,532 0 76,934 n/a n/a

Totals 257,638 292,594 322,001 314,841 272,306 273,106 291,532 76,934

Total - All Categories*

(in Thousands of Dollars)

2012 Monthly Sales Tax Activity (in thousands of dollars)
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE SALES ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR

(in Thousands of Dollars)

YTD
Monthly % Change

Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD 11-12 11-12

January 25,240 25,240 28,528 28,528 32,258 32,258 34,290 34,290 28,802 28,802 29,538 29,538 30,174 30,174 31,663 31,663 4.9% 4.9%

February 27,553 52,793 29,972 58,500 33,039 65,297 35,511 69,801 29,401 58,203 29,090 58,628 30,504 60,678 33,565 65,228 10.0% 7.5%

March 35,705 88,498 39,051 97,551 44,390 109,687 45,338 115,139 34,428 92,631 38,136 96,764 40,676 101,354 0 65,228 n/a n/a

April 10,773 99,271 15,134 112,685 16,025 125,712 13,410 128,549 12,653 105,284 12,154 108,918 12,281 113,635 0 65,228 n/a n/a

May 4,179 103,450 4,647 117,332 5,146 130,858 5,111 133,660 4,125 109,409 5,836 114,754 4,077 117,712 0 65,228 n/a n/a

June 9,568 113,018 9,789 127,121 12,225 143,083 11,112 144,772 9,829 119,238 9,302 124,056 9,713 127,425 0 65,228 n/a n/a

July 14,766 127,784 16,038 143,159 17,499 160,582 16,446 161,218 15,305 134,543 15,993 140,049 18,296 145,721 0 65,228 n/a n/a

August 12,122 139,906 13,446 156,605 15,167 175,749 14,815 176,033 12,859 147,402 13,261 153,310 16,010 161,731 0 65,228 n/a n/a

September 9,897 149,803 11,761 168,366 12,418 188,167 11,794 187,827 10,705 158,107 9,894 163,204 11,834 173,565 0 65,228 n/a n/a

October 5,824 155,627 6,248 174,614 6,934 195,101 6,977 194,804 5,986 164,093 6,143 169,347 6,517 180,082 0 65,228 n/a n/a

November 8,557 164,184 10,963 185,577 10,650 205,751 8,637 203,441 8,234 172,327 9,068 178,415 10,513 190,595 0 65,228 n/a n/a

December 30,619 194,803 33,736 219,313 35,517 241,268 31,211 234,652 30,667 202,994 33,363 211,778 37,081 227,676 0 65,228 n/a n/a

Totals 194,803 219,313 241,268 234,652 202,994 211,778 227,676 65,228

Retail-Restaurant-Lodging Summary

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2012 Monthly Sales Tax Activity (in thousands of dollars)
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(in Thousands of Dollars)

Monthly YTD
Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD 11-12 11-12

January 8,001 8,001 8,607 8,607 9,665 9,665 9,684 9,684 8,430 8,430 8,530 8,530 8,862 8,862 8,966 8,966 1.2% 1.2%

February 8,744 16,745 8,942 17,549 9,607 19,272 9,763 19,447 8,401 16,831 8,378 16,908 8,982 17,844 9,331 18,297 3.9% 2.5%

March 11,632 28,377 11,774 29,323 13,373 32,645 12,479 31,926 10,449 27,280 12,851 29,759 12,125 29,969 0 18,297 n/a n/a

April 3,678 32,055 5,406 34,729 5,287 37,932 4,301 36,227 4,274 31,554 4,032 33,791 4,006 33,975 0 18,297 n/a n/a

May 1,708 33,763 1,858 36,587 2,165 40,097 1,965 38,192 1,675 33,229 3,251 37,042 1,679 35,654 0 18,297 n/a n/a

June 3,565 37,328 3,589 40,176 4,597 44,694 4,153 42,345 3,558 36,787 3,895 40,937 3,477 39,131 0 18,297 n/a n/a

July 5,174 42,502 5,403 45,579 6,176 50,870 5,700 48,045 5,240 42,027 5,582 46,519 5,834 44,965 0 18,297 n/a n/a

August 4,620 47,122 4,757 50,336 5,110 55,980 5,631 53,676 4,384 46,411 4,302 50,821 5,003 49,968 0 18,297 n/a n/a

September 4,249 51,371 4,726 55,062 4,783 60,763 4,527 58,203 4,536 50,947 3,848 54,669 4,132 54,100 0 18,297 n/a n/a

October 2,404 53,775 2,591 57,653 2,866 63,629 2,635 60,838 2,277 53,224 2,453 57,122 2,609 56,709 0 18,297 n/a n/a

November 3 586 57 361 4 376 62 029 4 267 67 896 3 641 64 479 3 540 56 764 3 764 60 886 4 301 61 010 0 18 297 n/a n/a

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE REVENUE ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR

Retail Sales

2005 2006 20122007 2008 2009 2010 2011

November 3,586 57,361 4,376 62,029 4,267 67,896 3,641 64,479 3,540 56,764 3,764 60,886 4,301 61,010 0 18,297 n/a n/a

December 11,099 68,460 11,971 74,000 12,000 79,896 10,358 74,837 10,403 67,167 10,824 71,710 11,629 72,639 0 18,297 n/a n/a

Totals 68,460 74,000 79,896 74,837 67,167 71,710 72,639 18,297
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE REVENUE ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR

(in Thousands of Dollars)

Monthly YTD
Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD 11-12 11-12

January 6,897 6,897 7,924 7,924 8,414 8,414 9,117 9,117 8,231 8,231 8,515 8,515 9,039 9,039 9,922 9,922 9.8% 9.8%

February 7,047 13,944 8,058 15,982 8,467 16,881 9,208 18,325 8,129 16,360 8,343 16,858 8,660 17,699 10,351 20,273 19.5% 14.5%

March 8,117 22,061 9,256 25,238 10,015 26,896 10,240 28,565 8,527 24,887 9,186 26,044 10,151 27,850 0 20,273 n/a n/a

April 3,609 25,670 4,552 29,790 4,678 31,574 4,440 33,005 4,173 29,060 4,042 30,086 4,222 32,072 0 20,273 n/a n/a

May 1,760 27,430 1,832 31,622 2,058 33,632 2,107 35,112 1,783 30,843 1,812 31,898 1,570 33,642 0 20,273 n/a n/a

June 3,525 30,955 3,938 35,560 4,370 38,002 4,030 39,142 3,712 34,555 3,397 35,295 3,704 37,346 0 20,273 n/a n/a

July 5,375 36,330 5,905 41,465 6,249 44,251 6,218 45,360 5,931 40,486 6,222 41,517 6,949 44,295 0 20,273 n/a n/a

August 4,521 40,851 5,067 46,532 5,933 50,184 5,639 50,999 5,365 45,851 5,729 47,246 6,526 50,821 0 20,273 n/a n/a

September 3,498 44,349 4,340 50,872 4,585 54,769 3,971 54,970 3,565 49,416 3,883 51,129 4,656 55,477 0 20,273 n/a n/a

October 2,290 46,639 2,352 53,224 2,564 57,333 2,818 57,788 2,285 51,701 2,420 53,549 2,618 58,095 0 20,273 n/a n/a

November 2,841 49,480 3,651 56,875 3,593 60,926 2,972 60,760 2,649 54,350 3,006 56,555 3,380 61,475 0 20,273 n/a n/a

December 7,017 56,497 7,681 64,556 8,028 68,954 7,371 68,131 6,524 60,874 8,351 64,906 9,701 71,176 0 20,273 n/a n/a

Totals 56,497 64,556 68,954 68,131 60,874 64,906 71,176 20,273

Restaurants/Bars
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(in Thousands of Dollars)

Monthly YTD
Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD 11-12 11-12

January 10,342 10,342 11,997 11,997 14,179 14,179 15,489 15,489 12,141 12,141 12,493 12,493 12,273 12,273 12,775 12,775 4.1% 4.1%

February 11,762 22,104 12,972 24,969 14,965 29,144 16,540 32,029 12,871 25,012 12,369 24,862 12,862 25,135 13,883 26,658 7.9% 6.1%

March 15,956 38,060 18,021 42,990 21,002 50,146 22,619 54,648 15,452 40,464 16,099 40,961 18,400 43,535 0 26,658 n/a n/a

April 3,486 41,546 5,176 48,166 6,060 56,206 4,669 59,317 4,206 44,670 4,080 45,041 4,053 47,588 0 26,658 n/a n/a

May 711 42,257 957 49,123 923 57,129 1,039 60,356 667 45,337 773 45,814 828 48,416 0 26,658 n/a n/a

June 2,478 44,735 2,262 51,385 3,258 60,387 2,929 63,285 2,559 47,896 2,010 47,824 2,532 50,948 0 26,658 n/a n/a

July 4,217 48,952 4,730 56,115 5,074 65,461 4,528 67,813 4,134 52,030 4,189 52,013 5,513 56,461 0 26,658 n/a n/a

August 2,981 51,933 3,622 59,737 4,124 69,585 3,545 71,358 3,110 55,140 3,230 55,243 4,481 60,942 0 26,658 n/a n/a

September 2,150 54,083 2,695 62,432 3,050 72,635 3,296 74,654 2,604 57,744 2,163 57,406 3,046 63,988 0 26,658 n/a n/a

October 1,130 55,213 1,305 63,737 1,504 74,139 1,524 76,178 1,424 59,168 1,270 58,676 1,290 65,278 0 26,658 n/a n/a

November 2,130 57,343 2,936 66,673 2,790 76,929 2,024 78,202 2,045 61,213 2,298 60,974 2,832 68,110 0 26,658 n/a n/a

December 12,503 69,846 14,084 80,757 15,489 92,418 13,482 91,684 13,740 74,953 14,188 75,162 15,751 83,861 0 26,658 n/a n/a

Totals 69,846 80,757 92,418 91,684 74,953 75,162 83,861 26,658

2011 2012

Short-Term Lodging

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE REVENUE ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE REVENUE ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR

(in Thousands of Dollars)

Monthly YTD
Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD 11-12 11-12

January 1,720 1,720 2,084 2,084 2,876 2,876 2,631 2,631 1,240 1,240 1,095 1,095 777 777 977 977 25.7% 25.7%

February 1,669 3,389 2,031 4,115 2,459 5,335 2,532 5,163 1,297 2,537 1,111 2,206 821 1,598 910 1,887 10.8% 18.1%

March 2,216 5,605 2,967 7,082 3,156 8,491 3,463 8,626 1,530 4,067 1,472 3,678 1,245 2,843 0 1,887 n/a n/a

April 1,359 6,964 1,680 8,762 1,813 10,304 2,114 10,740 1,305 5,372 1,006 4,684 829 3,672 0 1,887 n/a n/a

May 1,370 8,334 2,045 10,807 2,314 12,618 1,894 12,634 1,250 6,622 1,139 5,823 841 4,513 0 1,887 n/a n/a

June 2,083 10,417 2,836 13,643 3,119 15,737 2,886 15,520 1,814 8,436 1,573 7,396 1,765 6,278 0 1,887 n/a n/a

July 2,186 12,603 2,872 16,515 2,770 18,507 2,450 17,970 1,602 10,038 1,354 8,750 1,619 7,897 0 1,887 n/a n/a

August 2,211 14,814 3,096 19,611 3,187 21,694 2,869 20,839 1,990 12,028 1,446 10,196 1,597 9,494 0 1,887 n/a n/a

September 2,452 17,266 3,394 23,005 3,234 24,928 3,574 24,413 6,237 18,265 1,471 11,667 1,857 11,351 0 1,887 n/a n/a

October 2,107 19,373 2,924 25,929 3,259 28,187 2,470 26,883 2,016 20,281 1,595 13,262 1,575 12,926 0 1,887 n/a n/a

November 1,876 21,249 2,537 28,466 2,693 30,880 2,199 29,082 2,196 22,477 1,495 14,757 1,437 14,363 0 1,887 n/a n/a

December 2,712 23,961 3,091 31,557 3,713 34,593 3,160 32,242 1,958 24,435 1,548 16,305 1,794 16,157 0 1,887 n/a n/a

Totals 23 961 31 557 34 593 32 242 24 435 16 305 16 157 1 887

Supplies
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(in Thousands of Dollars)

Monthly YTD
Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD 11-12 11-12

January 3,589 3,589 3,977 3,977 5,149 5,149 4,744 4,744 4,741 4,741 4,472 4,472 4,854 4,854 4,857 4,857 0.1% 0.1%

February 3,949 7,538 4,233 8,210 4,536 9,685 5,009 9,753 4,755 9,496 4,590 9,062 4,803 9,657 4,962 9,819 3.3% 1.7%

March 4,449 11,987 4,585 12,795 4,844 14,529 5,436 15,189 4,852 14,348 4,877 13,939 5,180 14,837 0 9,819 n/a n/a

April 2,503 14,490 3,149 15,944 2,920 17,449 2,959 18,148 3,213 17,561 3,186 17,125 3,261 18,098 0 9,819 n/a n/a

May 1,806 16,296 1,969 17,913 2,169 19,618 2,246 20,394 2,100 19,661 2,024 19,149 2,053 20,151 0 9,819 n/a n/a

June 2,392 18,688 2,584 20,497 2,822 22,440 2,990 23,384 2,643 22,304 2,682 21,831 2,757 22,908 0 9,819 n/a n/a

July 3,414 22,102 3,588 24,085 3,899 26,339 4,264 27,648 3,881 26,185 3,999 25,830 4,219 27,127 0 9,819 n/a n/a

August 3,292 25,394 3,529 27,614 3,771 30,110 4,161 31,809 3,807 29,992 3,896 29,726 4,271 31,398 0 9,819 n/a n/a

September 2,671 28,065 2,757 30,371 2,908 33,018 3,113 34,922 2,864 32,856 2,955 32,681 3,278 34,676 0 9,819 n/a n/a

October 2,239 30,304 2,372 32,743 2,494 35,512 2,673 37,595 2,408 35,264 2,488 35,169 2,648 37,324 0 9,819 n/a n/a

November 2,214 32,518 2,377 35,120 2,600 38,112 2,647 40,242 2,379 37,643 2,422 37,591 2,599 39,923 0 9,819 n/a n/a

December 6,356 38,874 6,604 41,724 8,028 46,140 7,705 47,947 7,234 44,877 7,432 45,023 7,776 47,699 0 9,819 n/a n/a

Totals 38,874 41,724 46,140 47,947 44,877 45,023 47,699 9,819

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE REVENUE ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR

Grocery/Liquor Stores
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
TAXABLE REVENUE ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SECTOR

(in Thousands of Dollars)

Monthly YTD
Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD 11-12 11-12

January 2,675 2,675 3,829 3,829 3,591 3,591 3,961 3,961 3,950 3,950 3,577 3,577 3,004 3,004 3,159 3,159 5.2% 5.2%

February 2,540 5,215 3,056 6,885 3,149 6,740 3,765 7,726 3,253 7,203 3,118 6,695 2,913 5,917 2,668 5,827 -8.4% -1.5%

March 2,883 8,098 3,428 10,313 3,525 10,265 3,699 11,425 3,134 10,337 3,365 10,060 2,772 8,689 0 5,827 n/a n/a

April 2,741 10,839 2,778 13,091 2,694 12,959 3,448 14,873 2,792 13,129 2,779 12,839 2,400 11,089 0 5,827 n/a n/a

May 1,939 12,778 1,926 15,017 2,386 15,345 2,742 17,615 1,917 15,046 2,057 14,896 2,057 13,146 0 5,827 n/a n/a

June 1,846 14,624 1,713 16,730 2,078 17,423 2,588 20,203 1,620 16,666 1,793 16,689 1,693 14,839 0 5,827 n/a n/a

July 1,663 16,287 1,529 18,259 1,588 19,011 2,075 22,278 1,539 18,205 1,548 18,237 1,614 16,453 0 5,827 n/a n/a

August 1,629 17,916 1,854 20,113 1,621 20,632 2,031 24,309 1,497 19,702 1,558 19,795 1,673 18,126 0 5,827 n/a n/a

September 1,843 19,759 1,949 22,062 1,792 22,424 2,219 26,528 1,667 21,369 1,625 21,420 1,604 19,730 0 5,827 n/a n/a

October 2,127 21,886 1,987 24,049 1,883 24,307 2,026 28,554 1,845 23,214 1,412 22,832 1,632 21,362 0 5,827 n/a n/a

November 2,340 24,226 2,264 26,313 2,251 26,558 2,411 30,965 2,364 25,578 1,972 24,804 2,409 23,771 0 5,827 n/a n/a

December 4,005 28,231 3,206 29,519 3,271 29,829 3,435 34,400 3,389 28,967 2,845 27,649 2,991 26,762 0 5,827 n/a n/a

Totals 28,231 29,519 29,829 34,400 28,967 27,649 26,762 5,827

20122011

Utilities
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX COLLECTIONS

2007 Collections 2011 Collections 2012 Budget 2012 Monthly 2012 Year to Date
Sales Tax Year Percent Tax Year Percent Tax Year Percent % of % Change % Change % of % Change % Change
Period Collected To Date of Total Collected To Date of Total Budgeted To Date of Total Actual Budget from  2007 from  2011 Actual Budget from  2007 from  2011

JAN 352,958$     352,958$         6.2% 436,605$        436,605$        12.8% 174,140$          174,140$          6.2% 132,557$     76.1% -62.4% -69.6% 132,557$          76.1% -62.4% -69.6%

FEB 342,995       695,953           12.3% 350,866          787,471          23.1% 169,224$          343,364$          12.3% 234,630       138.7% -31.6% -33.1% 367,186            106.9% -47.2% -53.4%

MAR 271,817       967,770           17.1% 250,986          1,038,457       30.5% 134,107$          477,470$          17.1% 115,321       86.0% -57.6% -54.1% 482,507            101.1% -50.1% -53.5%

APR 564,624       1,532,394        27.0% 333,424          1,371,881       40.3% 278,570$          756,040$          27.0% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            63.8% -68.5% -64.8%

MAY 533,680       2,066,074        36.4% 337,577          1,709,458       50.2% 263,303$          1,019,342$       36.4% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            47.3% -76.6% -71.8%

JUN 522,999       2,589,073        45.6% 251,806          1,961,263       57.6% 258,033$          1,277,375$       45.6% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            37.8% -81.4% -75.4%

JUL 343,610       2,932,683        51.7% 83,522            2,044,785       60.0% 169,527$          1,446,903$       51.7% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            33.3% -83.5% -76.4%

AUG 594,349       3,527,032        62.1% 350,730          2,395,515       70.3% 293,235$          1,740,138$       62.1% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            27.7% -86.3% -79.9%

SEP 711,996       4,239,028        74.7% 276,774          2,672,289       78.5% 351,278$          2,091,416$       74.7% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            23.1% -88.6% -81.9%

OCT 392,752       4,631,779        81.6% 208,831          2,881,120       84.6% 193,773$          2,285,189$       81.6% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            21.1% -89.6% -83.3%

NOV 459,147       5,090,926        89.7% 223,271          3,104,391       91.2% 226,530$          2,511,719$       89.7% -                   0.0% n/a n/a 482,507            19.2% -90.5% -84.5%

DEC 584,308$     5,675,235$      100.0% 301,397$        3,405,788$     100.0% 288,281$          2,800,000$       100.0% -$             0.0% n/a n/a 482,507$          17.2% -91.5% -85.8%
2012 budget is based upon 2007 monthly distribution

REPORTED IN THE PERIOD EARNED

4/3/2012
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Sales Tax Year Monthly YTD % of
Period Collected To Date Grand Lodge 1 Ski Hill Water House Other Churn Churn YTD Total

JAN 436,605$         436,605$             246,243 0 53,370 0 136,992$   $136,992 31.4%
FEB 350,866$         787,471$             147,234 26,482 11,550 0 165,599$   $302,592 38.4%
MAR 250,986$         1,038,457$          57,703 0 9,300 0 183,982$   $486,574 46.9%
APR 333,424$         1,371,881$          41,651 7,296 19,170 11,300 254,006$   $740,580 54.0%
MAY 337,577$         1,709,458$          87,830 36,403 0 0 213,344$   $953,925 55.8%
JUN 251,806$         1,961,263$          44,417 0 0 0 207,389$   $1,161,314 59.2%
JUL 83,522$           2,044,785$          14,277 0 0 0 69,244$     $1,230,558 60.2%
AUG 350,730$         2,395,515$          107,470 0 0 5,050 238,210$   $1,468,768 61.3%
SEP 276,774$         2,672,289$          27,114 0 0 0 249,660$   $1,718,428 64.3%
OCT 208,381$         2,880,670$          2,223 0 0 14,800 191,359$   $1,909,787 66.3%
NOV 223,271$         3,103,941$          5,083 17,212 200,975$   $2,110,762 68.0%
DEC 301,397$         3,405,338$          7,928 11,300 282,169$   $2,392,931 70.3%

Sales Tax Year Monthly YTD YTD % of % Change In Churn
Period Collected To Date Grand Lodge 1 Ski Hill Water House Other Churn Budget Churn YTD Total from  Prior Year

JAN 132,557$         132,557$             26,492 0 0 0 106,065$   174,140$        $106,065 80.0% -22.6%
FEB 234,630$         367,186$             69,718 0 0 32,250 132,661$   343,364$        $238,726 65.0% -21.1%
MAR 115,321$         482,507$             29,935 0 0 0 85,385$     477,470$        $324,112 67.2% -33.4%
APR -$                    482,507$             -$               756,040$        $324,112 n/a n/a
MAY -$                    482,507$             -$               1,019,342$     $324,112 n/a n/a
JUN -$                    482,507$             -$               1,277,375$     $324,112 n/a n/a
JUL -$                    482,507$             -$               1,446,903$     $324,112 n/a n/a
AUG -$                    482,507$             -$               1,740,138$     $324,112 n/a n/a
SEP -$                    482,507$             -$               2,091,416$     $324,112 n/a n/a
OCT -$                    482,507$             -$               2,285,189$     $324,112 n/a n/a
NOV -$                    482,507$             -$               2,511,719$     $324,112 n/a n/a
DEC -$                    482,507$             -$               2,800,000$     $324,112 n/a n/a

REPORTED IN THE PERIOD EARNED
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REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX COLLECTIONS
YTD CATEGORIES BY MONTH
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX COLLECTIONS

MONTHLY BY CATEGORY
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2012 Council Appointments 
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Breckenridge Marketing Advisory Committee (BMAC) 
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M  E  M  O 
 
Date:   April 3, 2012 (for 4.10.12 meeting) 
To:  Mayor and Town Council Members 
Cc:  Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager 
From:   Riverwalk and Events Manager 
RE:   Feedback on Proposed Rodeo Event    
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Background: 
 
Please see attached memo from the March 27, 2012 Town Council packet for background on the rodeo 
proposal.  Since the March 27 meeting, Mr. Bays has submitted a Special Event Permit Application and a Special 
Camping Event Permit Application to the Town.    
 
Public Feedback: 
 
A letter outlining the rodeo proposal was emailed to the Silver Shekel, Highlands and Valley Brook HOA’s as well 
as residents of Breck Terrace.  The same letter was posted on doors at all residences and businesses on Airport 
Road (north of Valley Brook) and at Peak 7 east homes overlooking Block 11/Airport Road.  
 
We have received 102 responses via email and phone as of 9pm on Wednesday, April 4.   I will update Council 
with the latest results at the Town Council meeting on April 10.  The responses are almost equally divided 
between supportive and in opposition to the proposal.  The responses breakdown in the following way: 
 

  In opposition        In support        Maybe/Neutral 
Airport Road  6   8  1 
Silver Shekel               20  20  5 
Highlands              17  19  2   
Peak 7 east  1   1  0 
Other   2   0   0 
          -----------          ----------           ---------- 
Total               46  48  8 
 
Feedback Summary: 
 
Respondents in opposition most commonly brought up issues related to increased traffic, river/water 
contamination, smell, noise from the public address system, animal cruelty/welfare issues, dust, loss of property 
values (especially from Airport Road residents), light pollution, trash, loss of the use of the River Trail and 
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surrounding areas, disruption of the other activities such as fly fishing and the lack of ranching history to 
support/encourage this use.  The following comments were typical and illustrate many of these points: 
 
“Along with the incremental noise created by cars, crowds and animals, a particular concern is the use of a public 
address system every weekend evening all summer long for several hours… For those living very close, bright 
lights would also be a nuisance. Additionally, there is already a good amount of traffic on Highway 9 and we fear 
this situation will be magnified along with the additional dust that will get kicked up with that area repeatedly 
being disturbed.  As nice as it is to bring new events to Breckenridge, we feel it would be very disruptive to have 
this particular type of event close to any residential area.  Moreover, the whole arrangement sounds like it would 
turn that entire strip of Airport Road and Highway 9 into a terrible eyesore.  We can't imagine this kind of 
"landscape" would make a favorable impression on people on their way into town.” 
 
“The value of real estate on Airport Rd will decrease, lowering tax dollars even more. Consider the residential 
neighborhoods that surround other rodeo venues i.e. Western Stock Show, Eagle Fair Grounds. Steamboat 
Springs is a ranching community and Breckenridge is not.  Our heritage is from mining.” 
 
Respondents in support most commonly cited a desire to have new family oriented activities available to locals 
and to summer visitors, the potentially positive economic impact on the community, a love of rodeo in general 
and marketing opportunities presented by a rodeo event.  The following comments were typical and illustrate 
many of these points: 
 
“I think it would be a great event for Breckenridge and added revenue to both lodging, restaurants, and shopping 
for the town. I would probably attend more than once or twice and I am not a cowgirl or ranching person, but 
love the history of the event.” 
 
“I think this could be a wonderful addition to Breckenridge.  I used to love attending the rodeos at Snowmass and 
Steamboat.  I think they have many positive impacts, including bringing more tourists to the area during the 
summer, and being an excellent family event.”  
 
There were also # respondents who were neither strongly in opposition nor in support, but voiced concerns over 
insuring that negative impacts such as traffic and odor issues were mitigated or felt that there were too many 
dates and the event should be smaller.  The following comment is typical of this category of responses: 
 
“Overall, I do not have a problem with the rodeo. I think it may be a nice event and draw customers and tourists.  
My issue however, is the number of dates. If you were to request one day (or one weekend) per month in May-
September I would immediately say "yes". But I think it's just too much…. If you want my approval (whatever 
that's worth), you will have to down size it significantly.” 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The Special Event Permit Application group requests feedback from Town Council about whether or not the 
proposed rodeo event should be allowed to occur at the Airport Road property during summer 2012. Also, we 
request direction regarding any potential sponsorship of this event as Mr. Bays would like the Town to become a 
sponsor of this event by providing the space for the rodeo free of charge or at a reduced cost.   
 
If Town Council recommends that we go forward with this event, staff will work with the applicant to address 
and mitigate the concerns identified such as noise, dust, smell and traffic. 
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M  E  M  O 
 
Date:   March 21, 2012 (for 3.27.12 meeting) 
To:  Mayor and Town Council Members 
Cc:  Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager 
From:   Riverwalk and Events Manager 
RE:   New Proposed Event- Breckenridge Stables PRCA Rodeo   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Background and Concept: 
 
In early March, Town staff were approached by Brad Bays, owner of Breckenridge 
Stables LLC and founder of Breckenridge Rodeo Education (a non- profit established to 
provide a rodeo experience in the Town of Breckenridge).  Mr. Bays proposes holding an 
eleven week PRCA (Professional Rodeo Cowboys Association) organized and sanctioned 
event in the Airport Road parking lot.  The proposed rodeo would run on Saturdays and 
Sundays from 6pm-8pm on the following dates: June 23, 24 and 30, July 1, 7, 8, 14, 15, 
21, 22, 28 and 29, August 4, 5, 11, 12, 18, 19, 25 and 26 and September 1 and 2.   
 
Events would include bareback riding, calf roping, saddle bronc, steer wrestling, team 
roping, barrel racing, bull riding, calf scramble, mutton busting and clown acts. Mr. Bays 
would hire PRCA (Professional Rodeo Cowboys Association) to put on all of the events, 
and Mr. Bays would provide all necessary infrastructure/services for this event including 
restrooms, security, tents, food/beverage (including alcohol) sales, lighting, rodeo arena, 
ambulance services, insurance, bleachers, veterinarians and trash services.   
 
Proposed Target Audience and Anticipated Attendance: 
 
The target demographic for spectators would be all ages, both visitors and locals- single 
and with families.   Mr. Bays anticipates drawing 300-500 spectators per rodeo day.  
Proposed ticket prices would be: adults 15 and older- $25, children 7-14 years old- $15 
and children 6 and under free.  Competitors would be drawn from around the state and 
would sign up to compete on the PRCA website and would need to be members of 
PRCA.   
 
The Breckenridge Police Department contacted the Steamboat Police Department for 
feedback regarding their rodeo event which is 20+ years old.  The Steamboat event has a 
very similar format to this proposed Breckenridge rodeo (also PRCA run) and the event 
normally brings in a couple hundred people to 400 people.  On special event days when 
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they have bull riding they get quite a bit more attendance.  Breckenridge Stables LLC has 
indicated that they have extensive marketing experience which they would utilize to 
promote the rodeo.   
 
Permit and Logistics: 
 
Mr. Bays would be required to submit a Special Event Permit Application which would 
be reviewed by Town staff from Public Works, Police, Community Development, Events 
and Communications, Town Clerk and Recreation and Red, White and Blue Fire.  Mr. 
Bays is requesting to lease the Airport Road parking lot.  There would be a 300 foot x 
450 foot fenced area where semi-permanent infrastructure such as tents, the arena, 
bleachers and livestock pens would remain throughout the summer. The rest of the lot 
would be used for parking during the event and would be open to public parking on non-
event days as well.  
 
The Steamboat Police Department reported getting some complaints about the noise, 
lighting and smell during the Steamboat rodeo.  And they have had some issues in area 
bars with “rowdy cowboys”, but that has not been an every night occurrence. Overall, the 
Steamboat Police reported that the rodeo is well received by the community and 
visitors. In the next week, we are planning to ask for feedback concerning this proposed 
event from all Airport Road businesses and residents by going door to door with a letter. 
We feel most concerned about the impact on these businesses and residents, and feel it is 
vital that they have input during this permitting process.     
 
In Steamboat, they allow trailers to park on the event grounds and trucks with sleepers to 
stay on site.  Mr. Bays has indicated that sleeping onsite in your trailer or sleeper with 
your animals nearby is industry standard and expected, and Mr. Bays intends to also 
submit a Special Event Camping Permit Application.   
 
Conclusion: 
Mr. Bays has been considering proposing a rodeo in Breckenridge for several years in 
order to “preserve and promote the traditions of the West” here in Breckenridge.  This 
event will be run by the non-profit Breckenridge Stables Rodeo Education, but will be 
supported by Breckenridge Stables LLC. Mr. Bays will spend between $20,000 and 
$25,000 per weekend to present this event with the hope that sponsorships, ticket, 
merchandise and food and beverage sales would cover as many of the expenses as 
possible.  Mr. Bays would like the Town to become a major sponsor of this event by 
providing the space for the rodeo free of cost or at a reduced cost.   
 
The Special Event Permit Application group would like to hear Town Council’s feedback 
concerning this event and would like to receive direction regarding any potential 
sponsorship of this event.   
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Memorandum 

 
TO:   Town Council 
 
FROM: Tom Daugherty, Public Works Director  
 
DATE:  April 4, 2012 
 
RE:        MOU with County for PW Lease and Recycle Site 
  

As part of the effort to bring the new Council up to date on current issues this 
memo will outline the Memorandum of Understanding we currently have with 
Summit County on the lease for the Public Works Yard and the recycle center.   

The County owns property located on County Road 450 that currently has the 
recycle center, Road and Bridge Department storage, Ambulance storage and 
Sherriff’s office storage.  The County has identified this property as a good 
location for attainable housing. The Town and County have been looking for 
ways to free the property for the intended use. 

The Town has determined that the recycle center could be relocated on a portion 
of the McCain property located just north of the Coyne Valley Road/ Airport Road 
intersection.  The Road and Bridge Department could be moved into the Public 
Works Yard where we would also share use of the sand pile and fueling facilities.  
The Road and Bridge Department move will require some modifications to the 
Publics Works site.  These modifications include relocating the Public Works 
Administration offices so that space can be used for equipment storage.  The 
County will also need to build an additional building for all their storage needs. 

The Town and County have entered into a MOU that outlines moving the County 
Road and Bridge Department and recycle center onto Town property.  The 
Sherriff’s storage and the ambulance storage will be relocated by the County 
separately from this MOU. 

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) includes constructing the Public Works 
Administration building this summer as well as the County facilities. The County 
is funding their new facilities and providing a portion of the funding for the new 
PW Administration building. Staff is currently working on the PW Yard lease and 
expects to review that with the Council in the near future.   

The recycle lease has been put on hold until the County Landfill/Recycle task 
force completes their duties sometime before the end of the year. 
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                TO:   BRECKENRIDGE TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM: BRIAN WALDES, FINANCIAL SERVICES MANAGER 

SUBJECT: SOLAR GARDEN STATUS 

DATE: APRIL 3, 2012 

CC: TIM GAGEN, RICK HOLMAN 

The purpose of this memo is to update Council with regards to the latest developments concerning 
the Town’s two potential solar garden (SG) projects.  Not much has changed since the prior staff 
update to Council of February 28, 2012. As such, this memo is written to advise continuing Council 
members of this fact as well as to get incoming members up to speed.  
 
Both projects have been approved in principle by Council for construction.  The two properties 
involved are the Stillson and McCain parcels.  These parcels are located on Wellington Road near the 
stables and on the far north end of Breckenridge to the west of highway 9, respectively.  Currently, 
Xcel has still not released the parameters for the application and proposal processes.  Xcel has 
delayed this process several times and latest estimate from the utility for the opening of the program 
is May 2012, which is the same time frame estimate from February.    
 
Our development partner, Clean Energy Collective (CEC), has been marketing the potential projects 
here in Summit County.  High County Conservation Center (HC3) has also been a part of this 
marketing effort.  CEC has been taking non-binding letters of intent for each site.  The Stillson SG, 
500 kW, is spoken for outside of 75 kW remaining for small subscribers.  Interested parties include 
the Towns of Breckenridge, Silverthorne, Dillon, Summit County and private citizens. The McCain 
2mW project is roughly 50% reserved on that same LOI basis.  Copper Mountain, the Towns of 
Breckenridge and Silverthorne, as well as Grand Resorts and private citizens have expressed interest 
in this project.   
 
We are still in negotiations with Alpine Rock with regards to their ownership interests on the McCain 
parcel.  As such, the exact location of the array has yet to be finalized. 
 
In summary, the Town and CEC have done everything we can to be ready for participation in this 
project.  The series of delays on the part of Xcel have put the feasibility of summer 2012 
construction in doubt, but it is still a possibility at this time. 
 
I will be happy to answer any questions Council may have at the April 10 work session. 
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